Questions from Industry Days 

15 -17 Jun 04

Acquisitions Information

1. When do we expect the draft RFP (Request for Proposal) and the final RFP to be sent out?  The tentative date for release of the draft RFP is late Aug 04 with 30 days to review The RFP is scheduled for release in October 2004.  These timeframes are tentative and subject to change.

2. Will there be a Bidders Conference? If so, when?  To Be Determined (TBD).
3. Will foreign companies be allowed to bid directly on the GATM V RFP?  TBD 

4. If one meets the requirements, what would keep one from being included in GATM V?  Anyone can be included in the GATM V contract if they meet the requirements that will be set forth in the RFP.

5. If there is only one competitor, does it still go on contract?  A single competitor does not preclude qualification on the GATM V contract.  

6. Can customer funding be put towards a product that will be on GATM V prior to the contract being in place?  No, the contract needs to be awarded prior to any orders being placed.

7. Can a vendor put products onto current GATM contracts prior to the award of GATM V?  If the vendor is already a supplier to the current contracts, they can update products through the tech refresh process.  If a vendor is not on any of the current GATM contracts, the only way to add the same products would be to sub with a prime that is already on a contract.

8. What quantities will need to be procured for the ID/IQ?  BEQ’s (Best Estimated Quantities) will be provided in the RFP in the Pricing tables
9. How much time will be given for the contractor to respond to the RFP?  Tentatively 30 days; RFP will include the actual time to respond.  

10. How can a vendor have an advantage in the GATM marketplace?  Short and realistic lead-times; honor commitments; being on time; upgrade kits for existing systems; strategic partnering; competitive pricing; and marketing to the aircraft SPOs (System Program Office).

11. Does each company need an existing military contract number to bid GATM V? No, GATM V is standalone from other government contracts, however, being selected for GATM V does not guarantee purchases of products.
12. How does a vendor apply to be a supplier for the GATM contracts?  Respond to the RFP.

13. Are there multiple parties offering the same product?  Yes
14. Where can a list of approved vendors for the various products be found?  https://igatm.hanscom.af.mil.  If you are new to iGATM, please request an account at the appropriate selection point on the home page.

Structure of GATM V

Period of Performance (PoP)

15. What is the length of the contract? 5 year maximum; still in the process of determining base and option year structure

Pricing

16. How will the pricing tables be structured in terms of quantity discounts?  Will they be provided, or will the vendor provide the quantity discount bands?  TBD.
Tech Refreshes

17. Will a Tech Refresh be allowed?  Yes.  It will be acceptable to have a tech refresh.  The product can cost more than the previous product on contract, if it provides a greater level of functionality.

18. Should planned tech refresh proposals on existing GATM contracts be withheld pending issuance of GATM V contract?  It’s at vendor’s discretion.  The government will evaluate all tech refresh requests.

19. Does an offeror need to identify all planned tech refreshes in response to the RFP?  No, tech refreshes are identified when they occur.
20. In the case of a tech refresh, does the contractor keep both products on contract or is it a replacement?  It’s up to the contractor.
21. Are there restrictions as to how many times a vendor can provide a tech refresh?  No, a vendor can provide as often as needed
Warranties

22. Are vendors required to price 1, 5, and 10 year warranties, or can they choose their warranty option?  The government will require that vendors price 1, 5, and 10-year warranties.

23. Is it up to the SPO to decide which warranty period they want?  Can they get a one-year warranty and later come back for a five-year warranty?  Warranty is determined at time of purchase by the SPO.  Annual service agreements will be available for out of warranty units.  

Terms/Conditions/CLINs (Contract Line Item Number)

24. Will the RFP for GATM V be similar to past contracts?  We anticipate GATM V to be similar in structure to GATM IV.  Other than new equipment, the major differences will be the 1, 5, and 10 year priced warranties and the process for certifying non-TSO’d equipment

25. How will differences in contract line items and terms and conditions from existing GATM contracts be addressed in the GATM V contract?  We will look at existing terms and conditions to see which ones can be carried over.  The final RFP will specify the terms and conditions.

26. Is it planned to include in the RFP a request for additional functionality and ancillary equipment usually associated with and complementary to voice and data recorders?  TBD
27. Can additional functionality not usually included in a basic/baseline system be included and priced on the GATM V catalog as an option?  Yes, options must clearly identify functions being performed. 

28. Will options for a system procured outside of any ID/IQ contract be included as an option/upgrade on the GATM V catalog?  Customers may purchase an option/upgrade kit if the respective option/kit is available on GATM V.

29. Is GATM V resetting the baseline or do products, CLINs, and pricing on GATM II, III, or IV carryover?  GATM V is resetting the baseline. 

30. What quantity of equipment (by equipment type by year) was procured under GATM II-IV? The GATM program office will issue a listing of the quantities of GATM I, II, III, IV products, by equipment type, that have been sold to date.  This information will be posted to HERBB (Electronic Systems Center (ESC) Business Opportunities Website).

31. Is the government anticipating putting subcomponents on contract as modification/upgrade kits for existing products?  Yes.  

Products

32. Is the product list presented in the Open Session briefing final?  No, the final list will be released in the RFP.

33. How would you go about adding an item that wasn’t in the RFI (Request for Information)?  Contact the government with suggestions.  RFP will contain final list of products.

34. Will an Interrogator be added to the list of products?  We are determining if an interrogator falls under the GATM Charter.

35. If a vendor has an integrated solution, is it acceptable for the catalog versus a standalone capability?  Integrated solutions are welcomed.

36. What platform-types were included in the market research used to develop the list of products to be included on GATM V catalog?   Are we considering rotary wings?  We received information from fighters, remotely piloted aircrafts (RPA), bombers, and transports.   We have not investigated rotary wing aircraft in the Air Force.  For the RFP, we will provide a final listing of equipment requirements, in total, by year, for bidding purposes. 

37. Will the GATM V catalog be structured in a way that a customer can customize a product if multiple functionalities are available?  If the vendor offers the flexibility to the commercial market, we would expect the same solutions to be proposed.

38. Will the GATM V RFP include new FM Immunity standalone radios as well as upgrade kits for existing radios?  TBD
39. Considering obsolescence and advances in technology, are all current products on GATM II, III, and IV anticipated as being carried over to the GATM V catalog?  The Systems Requirements Document (SRD) will specify which functionalities and systems will be required for GATM V.

40. Will product upgrades currently on existing GATM catalogs be requested for the GATM V catalog?  The SRD will specify which functionalities and system upgrades will be required for GATM V. 

41. Will commercial solutions for Flight Management Computer/Systems (FMC/FMS) be considered valid for GATM V?  Yes, military requirements will need to be integrated.  The result may be that the contract will only offer the hardware and operating system.

42. If a requested functionality is offered as part of a system solution, does that same functionality have to be offered separately?  TBD for all systems, with the exception of offering the transponder separate from TCAS.  

43. What is EFDS (USN)?  Electronic Flight Displays.
44. How are specific functions identified for each display format?  Up to the platform SPOs.

45. Can transponders be on the catalog as a sub to a prime and as a standalone?  Yes.
46. Will digital radar altimeter be added to the GATM V product list?  The program office will investigate adding digital radar altimeters to the product list since they are closely coupled with flight safety. 

47. Are there contemplated changes anticipated for the transponder?  Growth path to Mode 5 confirmed by the AIMS PO (Program Office).

48. Is a growth path to Dataflash still a requirement?  The SRD will have the final requirements for equipment.  

49. Can the antennas be offered separately as well as in a system?  Yes. 

50. Will the government require DoD AIMS 03-1000 for transponder certification?  The government will specify the latest approved AIMS requirements document that has been published in the RFP.

51. Is the government looking for upgrades to GPS?  Yes.
52. Will the government ask for transponder with and without appliqué?  Offeror will be asked to price transponder and appliqué separately.  This is in preparation for Mode 5 becoming available, and the appliqué will be purchased directly by Cryptological Product Support Group (CPSG).  This is a change from GATM IV pricing.

53. Will test equipment be considered as part of GATM V?  TBD.

54. Will an ancillary box be considered separate?  Yes, for pricing purposes.

55. Are we interested in ramp testers?  TBD.
56. Can adaptor interface units be added to the catalog if not called out specifically?  Yes, if they support component integration into an aircraft.  

57. How will we handle the different applications for electronic flight bags?  The government plan is to offer the hardware and operating systems on the GATM catalog.  Specific applications are the responsibilities of the platform SPOs.  Contractors may offer standard applications and software support tools that are available.

58. Can contractors offer mounting hardware and/or equipment trays as ancillary equipment?  Yes.
59. Do GATM customers want enhanced surveillance functions in addition to basic Weather Radar capabilities?  TBD.
Certification Questions

60. Are FAA Parts Manufacturing and Assemblies (PMA) certifications acceptable?  Yes, if a vendor has a FAA PMA certificate in lieu of a TSO.

61. Is DO-178B applicable to all system software, or may it be limited to FAA/Safety related processing?  TBD.

62. If anticipated certification falls outside of the 90-day window, will it be possible to add an enhanced product later on the contract?  Yes, provided that an existing product that performs the same function is already on the catalog, then a tech refresh can be accomplished later.

63. Why in the Industry Day briefing was the AIMS PO listed on another sheet from the other certifications?  There was no order of precedence in the briefing.  

64. For military GPS SAASM purchases, will GPS SPO authorization letters be required?  Yes.
GATM V Logistics

65. Will the requirements of “Web Support” carried over from existing GATM contracts be streamlined to simply the data entry, tracking, and notification requirements?  Yes, it is our intention to streamline web support by next summer.  Manual entry will still be required.

66. What is the process for updating iGATM web information?  A supplier to current contracts would email the program office to notify us of the update.   For GATM V, instructions will be provided on the iGATM website.  

67. If a subcontractor is separating from the prime contractor, how will the website logistics be handled, so certain part numbers aren’t associated with one site and others to another site?  TBD.

68. Clarify 48-hour aircraft-on-ground.  If an aircraft is grounded due to a failed GATM item, the contractor is required to ship a replacement within 48 hours.  It is up to the contractor to determine how many spares to keep on hand.  This will be a priced CLIN in the RFP.

69. What are the requirements for the logistics tracking on the contractor’s website?  On iGATM?  The RFP will provide specific direction/instructions.  On iGATM, the only logistics tracking required is to provide part numbers and serial numbers shipped for each delivery order.
GATM V Engineering

70. How can you add development if it is a FAR Part 12?  As part of the engineering services CLIN, customization will be allowed when it is part of an integration effort.  

71. When and how is platform specific software addressed? Via Engineering services CLIN, if exercised.

72. Can software toolkits be offered on GATM V to support platform customization?  Yes.
73. For products with an open architecture, how are the engineering tasks included in GATM catalog?  Engineering services are available on the catalog to support integration activities.

SATCOM/CMU Inquiries

74. How are we reacting to the OSD (Office of the Secretary of Defense) JTRS (Joint Tactical Radio System) Mandates?  Our plan is to require the platform SPOs to have all necessary waivers before purchasing a radio off of the GATM V catalog.

75. Does Inmarsat require a JTRS waiver?  We are reconfirming.

76. Will JTRS planning factors impact the requirements and selection of an 8.33 radio on the GATM V catalog?  Our plan is to require the platform SPOs to have all necessary waivers before purchasing a radio off of the GATM V catalog. 

77. Is an ARINC 615 Data loader a requirement for the H+ and Swift 64 services on the GATM contract?  TBD.
78. What is the government plan for pricing Inmarsat terminals to support Broadband Global Area Network (BGAN) when it is available in 2007?  The government will ask for pre-priced upgrade kits and hardware.

79. Are STU-III the only type of encrypted peripherals required to operate on Aero H+ terminals?   The government will restate the requirement as a NSA Type I Encryption.  

80. Is L5 GPS frequency a requirement? Currently there are no MOPS (Minimum Operational Performance Standards) and MAPS (Minimum Aviation Performance Standards) requiring L5 frequency, even though there’s talk about it.  Only when MOPS and MAPS are established will it become a requirement.  

81. Can roll-on/roll-off Swift64 terminals be offered on the catalog?  Primary requirement for Aero-H+ is that the satellite terminal must be capable of supporting Aeronautical Mobile Safety Services in accordance with (IAW) ICAO (International Civil Aviation Organization) SARPs (Standards and Recommended Practices).

 82. Is Aero-H/H+ a part of the GATM program now?  No
